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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning,

          3  everyone. We'd like to start the Rules Committee

          4  meeting.

          5                 Again, good morning. My name is Leroy

          6  Comrie. I chair the Committee on Rules, Privileges

          7  and Elections, and I'm tongue-tied this morning.

          8                 We have with us so far Council Member

          9  Tony Avella from Queens to my left, and Council

         10  Member Yvette Clarke to my left, and our Counsel to

         11  the Committee, Mr. Ed O'Malley, who I rarely

         12  introduce. I have to remember to do better.

         13                 Today we have before us six

         14  candidates for our review for positions in three

         15  separate bodies. They are Mr. William Kuntz, II,

         16  Brooklyn resident, Council re-designee to the

         17  Civilian Complaint Review Board, the CCRB as it's

         18  known, whose term, if approved by the Mayor, would

         19  expire July 4th, 2005.

         20                 Mr. Charles Greinsky, Staten Island

         21  resident, Council re-designee to the CCRB, whose

         22  term, if approved by the Mayor, would expire on July

         23  4th, 2004.

         24                 Mr. Dennis DeLeon, Manhattan

         25  resident, Council designee to the CCRB, whose term
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          2  if approved by the Mayor would expire on July 4th,

          3  2003, who would replace Earl Ward, who is now

          4  serving in a hold-over capacity.

          5                 Ms. Ruth Bloom, Queens resident,

          6  Council designee to the Health and Hospitals

          7  Corporation Board of Directors, whose term if

          8  approved by the Mayor would expire March 20th, 2005.

          9                 Ms. Jane Kalmus, Manhattan resident,

         10  Council reappointment to the Voter Assistance

         11  Commission, whose term would expire June 30th, 2004;

         12  and Mr. Glenn Magpantay, currently a Brooklyn

         13  resident, Council appointment to the Voter

         14  Assistance Commission, whose term would expire June

         15  30th, 2005.

         16                 We've been joined by Council Member

         17  Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx.

         18                 At this point we're going to do the

         19  CCRB designees. Which is Civilian Complaint Review

         20  Board, which is independent from the City's Police

         21  Department and charged with the duty to investigate

         22  plaintiff misconduct by police officers towards the

         23  public.

         24                 The Board consists of 13 members,

         25  five designated by the Council for appointment by
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          2  the Mayor, five appointed by the Mayor and three

          3  appointed by the Police Commissioner, the only

          4  members who have law enforcement experience.

          5                 Board members are required to reflect

          6  the City's diversity.

          7                 The CCRB has the civilian staff

          8  responsible for conducting investigations of

          9  complaints reviewed by the Board.

         10                 CCRB jurisdiction is limited to

         11  complaints claiming excessive force, abuse of

         12  authority, discourtesy or use of offensive

         13  language.

         14                 The Board operates in panels of at

         15  least three members. CCRB hopes to prosecute

         16  complaints before the office of Administrative

         17  Trials and Hearings, but this power is being

         18  challenged in court. Nevertheless, the Police

         19  Commissioner has the power to accept, reject or

         20  modify recommendations.

         21                 The first today to be recognized will

         22  be Mr. William Kuntz. I want to, again, congratulate

         23  our hard-working staff, and Mr. Charles Davis, for

         24  everything that they've done to prepare our

         25  background documentation for the candidates that are
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          2  coming before us today, and Mr. Ed O'Malley who is

          3  our Counsel for the Committee who has prepared

          4  comprehensive statements and background information

          5  and make sure that when I get tongue-tied, I get

          6  untongue-tied quickly.

          7                 So, again, good morning. We'll start

          8  with Mr. William Kuntz. Will you raise your right

          9  hand to be sworn in, please?

         10                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes.

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         12  or affirm that the testimony you're about to give us

         13  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         14  truth?

         15                 MR. KUNTZ: I do.

         16                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

         17  for the record.

         18                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes. William Francis

         19  Kuntz, II., 215 Congress Street, Brooklyn, New York.

         20                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         21                 MR. KUNTZ: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         23  opening statement?

         24                 MR. KUNTZ: I do not, sir. I'm happy

         25  to respond to any questions you have and am honored
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          2  to be here today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          4                 Well, then we will move right to some

          5  questions. I know this is a reappointment and you

          6  have had an exemplary term so far. You're with the

          7  CCRB, and in your response to the questionnaire sent

          8  to you by our Committee, you suggested five steps to

          9  improve CCRB's agencies operations. Could you please

         10  expound on each one for the benefit of our

         11  Committee?

         12                 MR. KUNTZ: I'd be happy to, sir.

         13                 First is greater funding support from

         14  the Mayor and the City Council to the hiring, the

         15  training, the retention and the evaluation of

         16  investigators in particular.

         17                 This is something that I think the

         18  Council has supported us going back to my first

         19  appointment to the internal board in '87, I think

         20  you have seen with greater support the improvement

         21  in the quality and investigations which has been a

         22  benefit to both the citizens and the Police

         23  Department.

         24                 There's no question that there have

         25  been periods of disruption. This is an agency that
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          2  makes tremendous good use of money. We don't have

          3  cars, drivers, excesses, when you give us money it

          4  goes right to the bottom line to the training and

          5  retention of investigators and I think you can

          6  correlate the improvement with good support staff.

          7  We have terrific senior staff, and it's been money

          8  that's been well served. And I can say that without

          9  patting myself on the back because I was there for

         10  the rough times, as you all know, as well as the

         11  relative good times. It's not about me, it's about

         12  the City and the Board and the staff.

         13                 So, that's the support issue. The

         14  second point is greater real time access to police

         15  documents. When the Board was internal to the Police

         16  Department, we had detectives as our investigators.

         17  They would pick up the phone, call a precinct, and

         18  they would get a roll call or a sprint report right

         19  away.

         20                 We now have a process in place where

         21  we're having NYPD officers who were going to be

         22  stationed permanently and have at CCRB to facilitate

         23  the information flow that's being worked out with

         24  the Police Department.

         25                 The ability to get roll calls and
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          2  Sprint reports, again, plain, ordinary, day-in

          3  day-out documents, will really cut the backlog and

          4  really cut the delays and it's something the

          5  Department has been I think helpful on but the

          6  protocols have been we have to put reports in

          7  through One Police Plaza. They send them out to the

          8  precinct, the precinct reviews it, sends it back to

          9  One PP and they send it to us.

         10                 If we can have the direct real time

         11  access that we used to have when we were internal,

         12  that will also enhance the process, and our

         13  investigators are first rate, you aren't going to

         14  have security concerns, there will be NYPD personnel

         15  there and we're moving in that direction.

         16                 But I cannot overemphasize the

         17  importance of that as something that will help us.

         18                 The third point is, we would be happy

         19  to come and speak to you as a Board more frequently

         20  before the Council, both at the staff level, but

         21  also at the Board level.

         22                 I think it's important for you to

         23  hear from as many Commissioners as you wish to hear

         24  from on whatever periodic basis, semi-annually,

         25  quarterly, we will come when you call us. We are
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          2  here today. And I think that would be helpful, in

          3  the good times as well as the bad times.

          4                 The fourth point is more direct

          5  contact with senior police officials. We have

          6  periodic meetings with the Police Commissioner and

          7  his senior staff and his First Deputy George Grasso.

          8  Those need to be enhanced. We need to do more of

          9  that. Again, the more you can routinize it, the less

         10  it becomes dramatic and I think having ongoing

         11  contact is good.

         12                 Finally, and this is on our heads,

         13  not anyone else's, more timely issuance of our

         14  semi-annual reports.

         15                 We have tried to make them more

         16  reader friendly, to put out the statistics and to

         17  get them out closer to the on-day time. I think

         18  we've made progress but I think we can all say we

         19  have progress yet to be made. So, those are the five

         20  major points that I pointed to in my answer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did you have an

         22  idea of a possible funding amount that you would

         23  recommend, or has the Board come up with a possible

         24  cost estimate? I know that you dealt with an agency

         25  budget cut last year, which was minimal, CCRB did
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          2  not receive the percentage increases some other

          3  agencies got. But did you recommend a possible

          4  budget for the agency?

          5                 MR. KUNTZ: Well, I think we're

          6  currently budgeted, if I understand the figures

          7  properly, at $9.43 million. The only reason that has

          8  not seriously impacted the agency, and I think we do

          9  need more, is that we have been giving its accruals

         10  from the prosecutorial unit, a unit which as you

         11  know has been tied up in litigation and we have not

         12  been able to do that.

         13                 I personally think that the right

         14  funding level for this agency at this time without

         15  the prosecution piece is somewhere between 13 and 15

         16  million dollars. I think we need to be at that

         17  level, just doing the investigations and making the

         18  recommendations.

         19                 If we were to, and I indicated this

         20  as well, take on the prosecutorial piece, which CCRB

         21  historically did not have, and which in my own

         22  personal view requires a change in the legislation,

         23  although the courts may reverse the trial judge, but

         24  if we ever get to that point, I think you're looking

         25  at another $5 million to do a prosecutorial unit,
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          2  and you would want to bring in someone, a for

          3  instance, someone like a Michael Veccione, who used

          4  to be on the Board, with one of the top deputies in

          5  the Brooklyn DA's office, to run it. He prosecuted

          6  cops in the stun gun cases back some 20 years ago,

          7  or someone like a Dennis Hawkins, you'd have to

          8  bring in experienced prosecutors and investigators.

          9  It would be a major change from what we would have

         10  ever from. The internal board did not prosecute

         11  police officers, so if you do it, you'd have to do

         12  it with experienced prosecutors, experienced

         13  investigators, require a great deal of money, we

         14  could do it, but certainly not anywhere near the

         15  levels we have now.

         16                 So, if you're asking me for a bottom

         17  line number, I'd say 13 and a half to 15 for what we

         18  do now, and if we ever get the prosecutorial

         19  authority, we're talking on an annual basis about

         20  another $5 million and you'd have to ramp up to that

         21  over a good year, 18 month time and do it right,

         22  with the cooperation of the Department.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: With the

         24  cooperation of the Department?

         25                 MR. KUNTZ: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did any members

          3  have questions?

          4                 We were joined by Lou Fidler I

          5  thought. Oh, okay, he's on the phone. I'll keep

          6  going then.

          7                 You said your current level is about

          8  9.43 million?

          9                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: As we all know,

         11  there are a backlog of cases with CCRB. Once these

         12  reappointments are done, you still have an issue of

         13  getting enough staff to follow through and focus on

         14  getting things done in a timely fashion. You said

         15  that you were having issues with real time access to

         16  Police Department records. Could you expound on that

         17  a little bit more?

         18                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes. Let me give you an

         19  example. If there is a complaint file, let's say I

         20  file a complaint against an officer, let's say the

         21  officer calls me a nasty name, and I know who the

         22  officer is and there's no question that he knows who

         23  I am and he says it didn't happen, I just gave Mr.

         24  Kuntz a ticket and sent him on his way, he was

         25  driving, and did not call him a nasty name. It's a
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          2  classic one-on-one situation, there's no medical

          3  records, there's no force, everyone knows who the

          4  officer is. That case should go from complaint, if I

          5  file it promptly as a citizen, to disposition in a

          6  Board panel. Commissioner Greinsky, you probably

          7  would agree with this, in not more than six weeks

          8  time. If you identify the office you know who is

          9  there, the complainant would be interviewed, the

         10  officer would be interviewed, you would determine

         11  there would be no witnesses, and it ought to be in a

         12  panel and disposed of, either substantiated,

         13  unsubstantiated, unfounded. It's very

         14  straightforward.

         15                 What happens, though, is we have to

         16  ascertain that the officer was on duty. So, a

         17  written request goes to One Police Plaza for the

         18  roll call for that day. And even if they process it

         19  promptly it then goes out to the precinct, and even

         20  if they process it promptly they've got other things

         21  to do, they've got to review it, it goes back to One

         22  PP.

         23                 Then it goes from One PP back to the

         24  CCRB investigator, who may be on vacation that week,

         25  who may have left to go to law school. So then it
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          2  sits there. And, obviously, it is not the most

          3  important of cases, it's an important case to the

          4  individual and to the officer, but what happens is,

          5  in the normal press of business, now you're looking

          6  at a two-month delay. So, then it goes into a panel,

          7  but it goes into a panel and someone says, you know,

          8  we really needed a radio run, because the dispatcher

          9  came along. So, the panel says where is the radio

         10  run, back it goes to One PP, to the precinct, to the

         11  radio command.

         12                 So, now we have a ten-month delay on

         13  a straightforward officer called me a dirty name,

         14  officer says it didn't happen, and people say, well,

         15  why do you have a backlog? That's the simplest kind

         16  of case. No medicals, no force, no additional

         17  witnesses, no multiple officer cases. We can go

         18  directly from CCRB with the officers who are going

         19  to be stationed there and say, look, officer X was

         20  supposedly on duty that day, fax it over. The way it

         21  was done in the old days. We would get these reports

         22  same day, real time. There's no controversy about

         23  this. These aren't undercover cops, it's a straight

         24  forward exchange of documents, and we could do it in

         25  a day before there was e-mail. They would just be
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          2  faxed over, they'd be handled. With modern

          3  technology we can cut this backlog. That case should

          4  not take more than six weeks to resolve fairly and

          5  accurately to the satisfaction of the citizen and

          6  the civilian. If you can do that, then it will be

          7  really in great shape in terms of cutting the

          8  backlog. And it's not going to cost any more money,

          9  I want to emphasize that. This is just about getting

         10  the kinks out of the system, and having everyone

         11  comfortable with the information exchanges, the way

         12  they were in the eighties, quite frankly, when it

         13  was internal, in terms of that sort of thing.

         14                 So, you put that in, you can really

         15  cut the backlog tremendously.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Clarke is asking me,

         18  did you know why the real time access has been

         19  changed from what it was to the problem that it is

         20  now?

         21                 MR. KUNTZ: I think what happened in

         22  '93 when the police officers left CCRB because of

         23  the change in the law, there was no transition time

         24  that was put into the change in the statute. In July

         25  they turned off their word processors and left.
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          2  There was litigation about whether the new CCRB

          3  could in fact interview police officers, could have

          4  access to these documents, that cost the agency a

          5  good six months. Then we had the staff hiring

          6  issues, we were set at one level and that got

          7  knocked back, there were other kinds of issues that

          8  were external to the Board I think that caused

          9  certain degree of delays, but the bottom line is,

         10  there was a great deal of institutional concern

         11  about regular document flow, back and forth. I think

         12  we've passed that, it's been almost ten years now.

         13  People know that our documents will be kept

         14  confidential. We have not had problems with that

         15  ever, internal or external boards, and I think that

         16  there is now an understanding that we will handle

         17  the documents professionally and competently and

         18  with confidence.

         19                 So, I think part of it was getting

         20  over the shock of not having, by the Department not

         21  having police officers there, and part of it was

         22  getting our own institutional house in order as

         23  well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 We've been joined by Council Member
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          2  Lou Fidler now, and Council Member Christine Quinn

          3  from Manhattan, and Council Member Clarke would like

          4  to ask you a couple of questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.

          7                 Good morning, Mr. Kuntz.

          8                 MR. KUNTZ: Good morning, Council

          9  member.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You stated in

         11  your response that the CCRB has to be increasingly

         12  mindful and sensitive to the fact that many police

         13  public encounters are police youth encounters.

         14                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Why is this

         16  phenomenon of such importance, and what

         17  understanding must agency investigators and Board

         18  members have of the nature of these police youth

         19  encounters, and how do they differ from police adult

         20  encounters?

         21                 MR. KUNTZ: Many years ago, I was on a

         22  panel with then Commissioner Silber, Deborah Silber,

         23  who is now a judge in Brooklyn, and we were going

         24  through a number of cases, and after about the tenth

         25  one she turned to me and she said, what is it with
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          2  you guys? What is it with this sort of I'll show

          3  you, no I'll show you?

          4                 A lot of what we have in CCRB cases

          5  are encounters with young men who simply engage in

          6  their ego testing and engage in inappropriate

          7  behavior because it escalates on both sides, the

          8  civilian and the police officer.

          9                 You don't really get -- I'm 52 years

         10  old now, okay? I was 37 when I went on the board. My

         11  hair was a little longer, I was a lot younger in a

         12  lot of other ways too. But you don't get a lot of

         13  52-year-old guys trying to show a 25-year-old police

         14  officer, you know, that he's tougher than he is. You

         15  get this problem with sort of young guys, younger

         16  guys. And, yes, there are issues involving women and

         17  police, but basically a lot of the complaints we get

         18  are, as Judge Silber said, "guy things." And, so,

         19  one of the things you want to do is have police

         20  officers comfortable in the notion that they

         21  represent society. No one is going to let a police

         22  officer get pushed around. They ought to be

         23  confident in that. They don't have to show anybody

         24  anything. Young citizens have to learn, if there is

         25  some issue and they are in fact in the right, they
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          2  don't have to prove anything that they are tougher

          3  than a police officer. Everybody sort of needs to

          4  stand down. This isn't about showing how tough you

          5  are. I mean, that's clearer to me at 52 than it was

          6  when I was 25, but you sort of get that over time,

          7  and if you can build that into the training and the

          8  system, you can really de-escalate a lot of these

          9  encounters on the street, and that's what I meant

         10  about youth, I don't mean ten-year-olds, I mean

         11  macho 18-year-old guys, I mean we've all seen that

         12  dynamic in many context.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Has CCRB updated

         14  a police public interaction guide?

         15                 MR. KUNTZ: We have a brochure in

         16  several languages now, our staff goes out routinely

         17  and meets with schools. We have been very active,

         18  especially since 9/11, knock on wood, I want to say

         19  this, we don't often get to comment about the

         20  significance or lack of significance about rises or

         21  drops in complaints. I would just note, when you see

         22  our semi-annual report, you will not see a rise in

         23  complaints by the Arab-American community, in terms

         24  of police encounters. I don't want to say, I don't

         25  want to jinx anything, I just want to note that in
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          2  anticipation a lot of people were predicting various

          3  things, and all we do is report the statistics and

          4  let you as the decision-makers and the policy-makers

          5  draw your conclusions about whether people should be

          6  praised or castigated for behavior but I would just

          7  note for the record, that's something that did not

          8  happen, for instance, over the past year. So, that's

          9  the kind of thing that we think.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, I don't

         11  want to ask you all the questions. What I wanted to

         12  do, and I don't know if I can, I want to check with

         13  my Counsel, since we have all three CCRB members,

         14  can we swear them all in and then they could all

         15  join in with some questions? Because I think there's

         16  some questions that I have that -- or we need to do

         17  each one at a time? Yes, we need to do each one at a

         18  time, okay. All right.

         19                 In that case, because what happens is

         20  we normally ask the first guy all of the questions

         21  and then the last two, they don't get asked at all.

         22  I mean, your answers are fine and they're very

         23  positive, it's not a reflection on you one way or

         24  the other, it's just I know what the tendencies are

         25  around here.
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          2                 So, in dealing with police youth

          3  relations, I found that we have an endemic problem

          4  where the police are so, when they're in an on-call

          5  situation and they've dealt with a, or are in the

          6  process of dealing with an arrest or possible

          7  arrest, the police tend to try to intimidate the

          8  entire area. And I have issues with young people in

          9  my district, especially that feel that if they are

         10  trying to be observant or directly observant, that

         11  they are intimidated to the point where they have to

         12  leave the area all together.

         13                 Now, while I understand the police

         14  mentality and the police need to control a crime

         15  scene. You know, we do need to get some more

         16  information and discussion with these young people

         17  so that they can lesson their desire to want to be

         18  the mediator, on-spot mediator. Because when there's

         19  a crime scene in play, there is no opportunity for

         20  mediation, and a lot of our young people feel that

         21  they all of a sudden want to be a Jonny Cochran on

         22  the spot and talk to the police when they're in the

         23  middle of an arrest. I think that's what leads to a

         24  lot of these situations where the police youth

         25  encounters are not positive because the police in
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          2  trying to do their job have to perimeter a crime

          3  scene, and have to control a crime scene, and we

          4  have to get information out to our young people that

          5  they have to understand that now that is not the

          6  time to discuss the issue, they need to make sure

          7  that their role is to ensure that the crime scene is

          8  calmed down as quickly as possible, and that their

          9  role is to make sure that even if they know the

         10  person is getting arrested to keep that area as calm

         11  as possible so that there are no unnecessary

         12  secondary arrests which I find is what happens when

         13  a person decides that they want to be Jonny Cochran

         14  and they get arrested in the process of trying to

         15  control a crime scene.

         16                 So, I make that long statement to say

         17  that if there's something that CCRB can be to do

         18  with more community outreach or utilize our offices,

         19  I know that you've come to York College a couple of

         20  times for meetings, I would hope that there are some

         21  things that we could do together as a unit to come

         22  out and talk to people on a larger basis.

         23                 I have to commend my Borough

         24  Commander, Inspector Lawless and Commissioner Kelly.

         25  We met with Commissioner Kelly earlier this year,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  and we talked to him about these types of

          3  interactions between young people and the police to

          4  try and mitigate these types of interactions. And as

          5  a result, the statistics have gone down, but there's

          6  still a lot of work to be done.

          7                 MR. KUNTZ: I agree with that.

          8  Absolutely, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman Fidler

         10  has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 I'm going to ask Mr. Greinsky the

         14  same question, as well.

         15                 In our mail we received a copy of a

         16  bill that's going to be introduced at City Council

         17  by one of its members that would require the NYPD to

         18  tape, videotape all police interrogations.

         19                 I guess the first part of my question

         20  is just how many CCRB complaints derive from conduct

         21  that occurs during a police interrogation?

         22                 And second, from a CCRB point of

         23  view, what's the usefulness, if any, of having the

         24  interrogation itself videotaped?

         25                 MR. KUNTZ: I'll answer your first
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          2  question first. We get relatively few, I would say

          3  undoubtedly fewer than five percent of the

          4  questions, complaints we get derived from what I

          5  will refer to as custodial, interrogations of

          6  witnesses, either in the stationhouse or on the way

          7  to the stationhouse.

          8                 With respect to, and I haven't read

          9  the bill but I heard a press account on it, let me

         10  take 30 seconds of your time, and cut me off if I go

         11  too long, but by way of response I'll tell you

         12  something that happened when the Board was internal

         13  to the Police Department.

         14                 Everyone remembers the Tompkins

         15  Square Park disorders. There was a very famous

         16  videotape of a gentleman standing on top of a van

         17  videotaping a police officer, using his nightstick

         18  to try to stop him from doing that. This is when the

         19  Board was internal.

         20                 The detectives who worked for CCRB

         21  narrowed it down to one of two cops who was doing

         22  that, Cop A or Cop B. They took Cop A into one room

         23  and they took Cop B into the other room and they

         24  said to them simultaneously, because these guys were

         25  like Siamese Twins, you couldn't tell them apart,
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          2  they looked identical, all right? And they were both

          3  in the park that night, and they said to them as

          4  follows: We know it's you. They showed them the

          5  tape. We know it's you. See, it's you on the tape.

          6  We filed charges in specs, you better admit it was

          7  you, to each of these guys, okay? They weren't sure

          8  which one it was. Cop A says, I know it looks like

          9  me. If I were investigating I would say it's me.

         10  You've got to believe me, it's not me.

         11                 Cop B says, got me. I did it.

         12                 Now, I don't know what would happen

         13  with a good criminal defense lawyer in a trial

         14  against Cop B if he found out about the interview

         15  with Cop A, could get his hands on that, and in turn

         16  was trying to blow up his own confession, could say,

         17  well, the Police Department said that it was Cop A,

         18  ladies and gentlemen of the jury, reasonable doubt,

         19  okay? I'm no Jonny Cochran, all right? As you know

         20  from my background, that's not my area of practice.

         21  I think once you start videotaping confessions, you

         22  may let all sorts of things happen that are not sort

         23  of obvious.

         24                 So, it's a very, I know three states

         25  have done it, there are lots of people who advocate

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  for it, but we got the cop on charges and specs back

          3  in '88 because of the way the detectives questioned

          4  those two separated police officers, and, you know,

          5  those techniques are used with rapists and murderers

          6  and everyone else by the Police Department. Now, you

          7  may feel that Cop B is entitled to find out what

          8  they were saying to Cop A, and to use that in his

          9  defense, and to blow up his confession. That's not

         10  for me to say, but I'm just saying there's certain

         11  implications if you do that that may have an impact

         12  on law enforcement, and you've got a lot of other

         13  people you can ask about that. I gather PD has not

         14  weighed in on whether they think it's a good or a

         15  bad idea, but, you know, at least from a CCRB point

         16  of view, the way we handled that back in '88, we got

         17  Cop B, and I don't think we would have got him if he

         18  had known about the interview with Cop A.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many days

         20  a week does the CCRB meet?

         21                 MR. KUNTZ: We have panel meetings.

         22  Typically there are four panels. Four panels, and

         23  the panels meet on a once a month basis, and that's

         24  where most of the work gets done. We evaluate

         25  anywhere from 100 to 150, 175 cases in panel meeting
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          2  and there's a full board monthly meeting that's held

          3  that the public is invited to for public sessions.

          4  And then depending upon the flow of work and events,

          5  there may be additional committee meetings or other

          6  meetings in between as well. So, it will vary over

          7  time. But at least two daily meetings a month.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: At least two

          9  meetings?

         10                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes, at least two meetings

         11  per panel member. So, you can come to CCRB. I mean,

         12  we're open 24/7 in terms of taking complaints, but

         13  in terms of actual meetings, each Commissioner is

         14  committed to at least two, in effect, full day

         15  meetings per month, and if the work requires more we

         16  do more.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: How much time do

         18  you spend there per month?

         19                 MR. KUNTZ: I probably spend three

         20  days, three and a half days on average, plus the

         21  weekend time, and the nighttime reviewing the cases.

         22  A lot of time on the phone talking with the

         23  executive director, and a lot of time talking with

         24  my fellow commissioners about policy issues, as well

         25  as particular cases which we talk about when we need
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          2  to.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We'd like to at

          4  this point swear in the next person, Mr. Charles

          5  Greinsky, the Staten Island resident, whose term, if

          6  reappointed, if approved -- or, no, you're a

          7  re-designee, you're already on the board, if the

          8  term was approved by the Mayor would expire on July

          9  4th, 2004. Could you raise your right hand and be

         10  sworn in, please?

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         12  or affirm the testimony you're about to give us is

         13  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         14  truth?

         15                 MR. GREINSKY: I do.

         16                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

         17  for the record.

         18                 MR. GREINSKY: Charles M. Greinsky.

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         21  opening statement, Mr. Greinsky?

         22                 MR. GREINSKY: I do not, Councilman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         24                 Councilman Michael McMahon asked me

         25  to let you know that he is aware of your
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          2  reappointment and that he wanted to let you know

          3  that he was concerned regarding a conflict with the

          4  sports memorabilia collection.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Or his

          6  political button collection.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: He said if I

          8  mentioned that you would know immediately what the

          9  issue was. But he is very excited and pleased that

         10  you are being reappointed by the Council to this

         11  position, and he wanted to express his full support

         12  of your appointment, although he couldn't be here

         13  this morning, he had to be back in his district.

         14                 So, I'll open up the floor to anyone

         15  else's question at this point for Mr. Greinsky.

         16                 Councilman Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You heard the

         18  question I asked Mr. Kuntz, so I was wondering if

         19  you could give us the benefit of your experience on

         20  the CCRB, and what your perspective would be.

         21                 MR. GREINSKY: It is one that has not

         22  generated a lot of complaints. I can't even think of

         23  one that comes to mind, and it may be that it may be

         24  even weeded out or moved out of the system before we

         25  get it, that it may not be something that falls
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          2  within our purview. Someone may be making a decision

          3  that it wouldn't fall within our purview, or the

          4  fact that it's really not happening.

          5                 It's an interesting thing that we

          6  need to go back and look at with our improved case

          7  tracking system we may be able to take a look at it

          8  and clearly we're going to need to for you and

          9  clearly to help support what position we can on this

         10  bill.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, the

         12  rationale that's attached to the letter asking for

         13  support of this intro says that by videotaping the

         14  interrogation process, not only are we protecting,

         15  you know, the people who are being interrogated from

         16  police abuse, but also innocent police officers. And

         17  if I'm understanding you correctly, you're telling

         18  me if you can rarely, if ever, recollect a CCRB

         19  complaint arising out of custodial interrogation.

         20                 MR. GREINSKY: Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         23  Clarke.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 Good morning, Mr. Greinsky. I have

          3  two questions for you. In your response to

          4  questionnaires, you stated or alluded to there being

          5  a need for an increased use of alternative dispute

          6  resolutions -- alternative disputes resolution. For

          7  the benefit of the Committee, can you provide some

          8  detail about alternative dispute resolution and why

          9  you feel it's important for the CCRB?

         10                 MR. GREINSKY: Sure. Rather than

         11  having a full investigation, which can take, as we

         12  heard earlier, you know, six, nine months, a typical

         13  case can run six months of a simple he said she said

         14  or he said he said, that may come out with an

         15  unsubstantiated where you can't prove it, one way or

         16  the other, which could result in, you know, 40 man

         17  hours or whatever at a cost of, you know, X; where

         18  if we can get both sides to agree, let's go in and

         19  have a discussion and we spend just a few hours,

         20  three or four hours administratively, and not

         21  investigating it, bringing the two parties together

         22  to discuss the incident and not looking for a

         23  conclusion that I was right and you were wrong, that

         24  they could better understand the actions of each

         25  other. It saves time, it saves money, and you could
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          2  have both parties going away satisfied.

          3                 And I can give you a great example. A

          4  police officer was on traffic duty around the high

          5  school and it was a female and she saw this female

          6  parent double parked. She went around the school and

          7  told the parent "move your car." She came back,

          8  still there. Came back another time, came back a

          9  third time, wrote the parent a summons.

         10                 The parent runs out of the car, goes

         11  to the trunk, reaches in, the trunk lid fell on the

         12  parent, okay? The police officer said I didn't close

         13  the trunk lid on you, I think if the police officer

         14  did do it and might have said that she did do it,

         15  she would have been justified. You know, that was

         16  reasonable, not knowing what the parent was going to

         17  do. The parent said she was going to get a camera.

         18  She was waiting for a car to pull out to take the

         19  parking space, okay? We now have a case that was

         20  unsubstantiated, because the police officer said I

         21  didn't do it, we can't exonerate it, the parent

         22  thought she had a legitimate reason to doing it. We

         23  wound up with an unsubstantiated. We have both

         24  parties unhappy, where if we could have brought them

         25  together to mediate it and talk about it, I think
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          2  both parties could have gone home satisfied.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is that

          4  something that you see as part of perhaps the

          5  purview of CCRB? Or is that something that you would

          6  see initiated through maybe the Police Department or

          7  a local precinct in the community?

          8                 MR. GREINSKY: We currently do do the

          9  mediations. We've done upwards of 60 this year.

         10  We're looking to do more and more.

         11                 We have a rigorous criteria for what

         12  cases are suitable for mediation, and I really don't

         13  want to spend the whole time with that, but we

         14  basically make sure that we have cases that are

         15  suitable, we don't have Jack the Ripper as a police

         16  officer, and we don't have, you know, a bad civilian

         17  on the other side either.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: My final

         19  question to you, that you also raised the issue of

         20  the lack of diversity on staff as problematic. In

         21  what way is it problematic, or what steps are being

         22  done or can be done to address the issue?

         23                 MR. GREINSKY: We as a Board need to

         24  further direct our executive director to step up

         25  recruiting efforts to better reflect the diversity
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          2  of the City.

          3                 We need to, as a Board, get the

          4  message through to our chair and hopefully we can do

          5  it collectively through the Council and maybe

          6  through the Mayor and through the Police

          7  Commissioner, the three entities that recommend

          8  appointees to this board, that we need a personnel

          9  committee that can help with this.

         10                 We used to have one until '96 or

         11  thereabouts, and we had a chairman who felt it

         12  wasn't important anymore and did away with it.

         13                 And coincidentally that's the same

         14  time EEO complaints started within the agency.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman

         16  Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, if I

         18  could, Mr. Greinsky, just go back to Councilwoman

         19  Clarke's discussion about the alternative dispute

         20  resolution. I see your resume includes 13 years of

         21  work in that field. What areas would you increase

         22  the use of it? You say that, you know, you have a

         23  criteria, and so that would be question number one.

         24  Question number two is, who does this? I mean, it's

         25  got to be done by a staff member. I would think that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  the complainant doesn't view as a Police Department

          3  person and the police officer also, I'm sure -- you

          4  know, it's got to be a neutral non-hostile

          5  environment. So, where would you increase the use of

          6  alternate dispute resolution, and how are you doing

          7  it?

          8                 MR. GREINSKY: We have, unfortunately,

          9  the discourtesy, the offensive language complaints

         10  are starting to increase again, and that is a good

         11  pool to draw from.

         12                 There are those, and the Department

         13  wants to have a discussion with us that feels ethnic

         14  slurs should not be mediated, and that's open for

         15  discussion. But there's enough of offensive language

         16  other than racial slurs that the pool is there.

         17                 We have three people on staff that

         18  work at it administratively, identifying the cases,

         19  working with the Department, finding out if the

         20  police officer's record meets our criteria, is

         21  suitable, arranging with the civilian a mutual time,

         22  working with the Department of a mutual time, and

         23  then we have a cadre of civilian mediators that we

         24  draw from throughout the City and currently our

         25  mediations take place at 40 Rector Street, and it is
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          2  in my mind that the ideal thing is to progress to

          3  the day that we're out there having our mediations

          4  out at the Community Dispute Resolution Centers that

          5  exist in all the five boroughs so that we're more

          6  closer to the people. And if you have a complaint

          7  that originated, whether it be in Totenville,

          8  Riverdale, Far Rockaway, you know, you're not coming

          9  down here to 40 Rector Street.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then the

         11  primary area that you're looking at would be

         12  offensive language complaints. And I would certainly

         13  agree with the Department that ethnic slurs should

         14  not. You know, there's never an excuse for a police

         15  officer to honor an ethnic slur or substantiate. I

         16  don't think that's a subject of mediation. So, if

         17  you're just looking for input, I mean that to me is,

         18  that's out of bounds and should not be considered.

         19                 MR. GREINSKY: I hear you loud.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: To the extent

         21  that we can move things into alternative dispute

         22  resolution, I think that will help unclog the

         23  calendar some with things that are not as severe. I

         24  think that's something that I would support and

         25  hopefully the Council would support and try and find
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          2  a way to help you do that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I would

          4  wholeheartedly agree with Councilman Fidler.

          5                 We've been joined by Council Member

          6  Hiram Monserrate from Queens.

          7                 Any questions?

          8                 Not at this time. I also have this

          9  same question I asked before to Mr. Kuntz. How many

         10  days a week do you work? Or actually, let me do a

         11  preliminary question. You had indicated in your

         12  response that a former Board chair kind of

         13  instructed you not to visit the offices, so you

         14  would not be able to oversee the day-to-day

         15  operations?

         16                 MR. GREINSKY: That is correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Is that

         18  atmosphere still prevalent? And conversely what is

         19  your input and that of other Board members actively

         20  solicited? Is your input actively solicited by the

         21  Board Chair; or do you have opportunities for

         22  discussion?

         23                 You just talked about the diversity

         24  and the need for diversity for staff, are you having

         25  a little more input than you had before?
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          2                 MR. GREINSKY: The good news is yes.

          3  We haven't had that Board Chairman, and I'll defer

          4  to Bill, about three years?

          5                 MR. KUNTZ: Yes.

          6                 MR. GREINSKY: So, things clearly have

          7  gotten better. However, we certainly have the need,

          8  and I think it was exhibited yesterday, and we speak

          9  again today, we do have the need for a personnel

         10  committee.

         11                 The Board has a need to know what's

         12  going on within its agency. We are its Board of

         13  Directors, you know, if you will. Physically not

         14  being in the building led to problems, led to

         15  hundreds, if not thousands of missing cases, which

         16  some of your colleagues knew, you know, we've been

         17  through with DOI over the same years. We don't want

         18  Board members in the building, but cases disappear,

         19  they're hidden under desks right outside the

         20  Director's office, you know, these things could or

         21  should have been avoided.

         22                 The time that we spend on the cases,

         23  not to downplay the fact of not being in the office,

         24  but to prepare for a panel to read 100, 125 cases

         25  takes 25 to 30 hours.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you have to

          3  read them only within the committee meeting?

          4                 MR. GREINSKY: No, you read them in

          5  either your home or your office, you know, at your

          6  leisure. Whether it be two in the afternoon or two

          7  in the morning on a Saturday night, because you need

          8  to know that case, or that you were doing what's

          9  right and fair to both the civilian and the officer

         10  who's case you're looking at.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, how many days

         12  a week do you get to spend at CCRB?

         13                 MR. GREINSKY: I would say that I must

         14  spend 18 to 20 hours a week on Board business.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That's a good

         16  amount of time.

         17                 Are they compensated for it?

         18                 MR. GREINSKY: Yes, we are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: It doesn't sound

         20  like it's enough compensation for the time you put

         21  in. But that's a discussion for a better budget

         22  time.

         23                 MR. GREINSKY: We're doing the

         24  people's work as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, we really
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          2  appreciate your dedication to the City, and your

          3  desire to try and help mitigate real issues, and in

          4  that regard, how can the personnel committee be

          5  reconstituted? Is that slowly at the discretion of

          6  the Chair? Or is it as opposed to solely his

          7  discretion, can there be a vote or something that

          8  the Council can do to try and nudge somebody?

          9                 MR. GREINSKY: I think it can be done

         10  by a vote of our Board, but a nudge from the

         11  Council, the Mayor and the Police Commissioner, the

         12  Council has five votes, we have four people

         13  currently there, I think the four of us would vote

         14  for a personnel committee when we have our next

         15  meeting, and if we can nudge that way and that way,

         16  we can get to more people to get the votes we need.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Because I

         18  would think that your presence there within the

         19  offices would help on a regular basis or on an as

         20  is, as desired basis, would do a lot to make sure

         21  that the employees there have accountability and

         22  just a better level of morale sometimes. I'm sure

         23  they're inundated with paperwork and I'm sure that

         24  you bring a positive attitude to the environment and

         25  would help them with what they would have to do.
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          2                 If there are no other questions for

          3  Mr. Greinsky. All right, Councilman Avella.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thanks. Just a

          5  quick question. Good morning.

          6                 Have you ever noticed a difference,

          7  yourself being a Council designee, as the way you're

          8  treated down at the CCRB, as opposed to a Mayoral

          9  appointee?

         10                 MR. GREINSKY: Absolutely. Especially

         11  in the era that I spoke about. Chairman Barkan, I'll

         12  be frank, when Chairman Barkan --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: We want you to

         14  be frank.

         15                 MR. GREINSKY: When Chairman Barkan

         16  was there we were second and third class citizens.

         17  We were only cared about two or three days a year,

         18  and that was called budget time. Otherwise it didn't

         19  matter who we were.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, hopefully

         21  that will change, and is in the process of changing.

         22                 At this point we'd like to swear in

         23  our commissioner, Dennis DeLeon.

         24                 If you will raise your right hand to

         25  be sworn in, please.
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          2                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

          3  or affirm the testimony you're about to give us is

          4  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          5  truth?

          6                 MR. DeLEON: Yes.

          7                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

          8  for the record.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You have to push

         10  the button in.

         11                 MR. DeLEON: Dennis deLeon. D-e

         12  capital L-e-o-n.

         13                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         15  opening statement to make?

         16                 MR. DeLEON: No, I don't. I actually

         17  put everything in my responses to the questions that

         18  were sent.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.

         20                 We've been joined by Council Member

         21  Dilan. Council Member Eric Dilan has stopped by to

         22  say good morning.

         23                 In your response to the questions,

         24  you indicated that there's not enough done in

         25  Spanish, and more outreach needs to be done in
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          2  Spanish as a general community. Could you elaborate

          3  on that please?

          4                 MR. DeLEON: Right. I do believe that

          5  the outreach to the Spanish community is, just from

          6  my talking to leaders in different parts of the

          7  City, which are primarily Spanish language dominant,

          8  that very little is done, aside from simple

          9  translations, to bring that population into a

         10  confidence relationship with the CCRB. We see many

         11  people in these areas come from countries or areas

         12  where an entity like the CCRB is not existent, and,

         13  therefore, many see it as simply an extension of the

         14  Police Department.

         15                 So, I think that basic trust

         16  relationship has not been built.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I know at one

         18  point the CCRB was supposed to send applications to

         19  elected officials offices, and to community boards.

         20  Have they expanded that base? Because if we're just

         21  talking about for lack of outreach the Hispanic

         22  community, Hispanic-speaking community, we need to

         23  make sure that there are areas within that

         24  community, other than places where they probably

         25  don't go anyway, the Police Department, community
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          2  boards, they would only go to an elected official's

          3  office for other issues, as opposed to going for

          4  CCRB. We need to work on getting those applications

          5  sent to churches, sent to day care centers, or sent

          6  to other points where that population would be more

          7  comfortable with expressing themselves.

          8                 We would hope and we encourage people

          9  to come to our office to express themselves when

         10  they have a police complaint. But sometimes they

         11  only come to us after they've hit a second level of

         12  frustration, and often times I find that they come

         13  to us after their time is expired to file a

         14  complaint. So, you know, I would hope that we could

         15  help you, especially in the Hispanic community to

         16  find other locations to distribute those complaint

         17  applications to. Do you know where we are at that

         18  process?

         19                 MR. DeLEON: I'm not a member. My

         20  information is solely based upon conversations with

         21  leaders in these communities. Most of them have

         22  never seen anything from the CCRB, but I'm sure

         23  maybe there's another story from people that have

         24  been on the Board for awhile.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I forgot, you're
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          2  a new designee, I'm sorry.

          3                 Mr. Greinsky.

          4                 MR. GREINSKY: The more that we could

          5  do, the more we want to do, we want to get it out

          6  there. Our Director of Intergovernmental Affairs,

          7  back there, I'm sure he's taking notes. We do have

          8  them, we do try and get them out regularly to

          9  hospitals, community boards, to the elected

         10  officials, we need to do another round of mailings.

         11  We most certainly will, and we welcome, you know,

         12  Dennis to us, and I'm sure there will be a spot on

         13  the outreach committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Mr. DeLEON,

         15  just back to you for a minute.

         16                 You indicated that there needs to be

         17  more public awareness of the make up of the staff of

         18  the agency to underscore its independence. Can you

         19  talk about how that should happen and how a better

         20  public understanding of the make up would create a

         21  sense of independence?

         22                 MR. DeLEON: Well, I think that when

         23  you realize that this is a civilian, largely a

         24  civilian process, even though police officers might

         25  be used to gather some documents, I guess that's the
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          2  plan, that does bring some level of confidence.

          3                 I don't think people, at least in the

          4  communities that I deal with, they don't realize

          5  this. Many of them are harboring under the

          6  impressions of the CCRB for many years ago, and I

          7  think that anything that can be communicated that

          8  underscores independence, and quite frankly, it

          9  would help to underscore sensitivity, if there was a

         10  workforce that was reflective of the communities

         11  that are being served. I'm hearing that issue here,

         12  not being a Board member.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. You've

         14  indicated that a bias in handling of CCRB cases in

         15  favor of either complaints, complainants or subject

         16  police officers, would be an indication that the

         17  Board is not doing its job; how would you work to

         18  assure that the agency's investigations and

         19  recommendations are impartial and unbiased?

         20                 I'm sure you heard yesterday the

         21  testimony that was given by -- I'm blanking on the

         22  gentleman's name and I don't know why, but the

         23  testimony yesterday concerning the feeling and the

         24  reflection that the agency or the staff was trying

         25  to bias the commissioners into voting certain ways;
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          2  would you give us an idea in your vision on how that

          3  could be corrected?

          4                 MR. DeLEON: My primary thing is

          5  transparency. The more transparent any process is,

          6  the more of the record that is made available, the

          7  more information people have to assess whether or

          8  not there is bias. And I'd have to be a member of

          9  the Board to ascertain other things that we can do

         10  to address the perceived bias issues, and the real

         11  bias issues if they exist, the perceived and the

         12  real become almost equally important.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Greinsky, or

         14  Mr. Kuntz, do you want to talk about Mr. Aquino's

         15  position yesterday and how he might have felt where

         16  that pressure came from in his opinion?

         17                 MR. KUNTZ: Well, my observation is I

         18  did not hear the testimony, though I heard reports

         19  of it. First of all, as you know, Mr. Aquino's

         20  allegations are being reviewed by the Department of

         21  Investigation and by the Comptroller's Office, which

         22  has oversight for our audit responsibilities. So, I

         23  don't know what those investigations will turn up.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: He did praise the

         25  Board in general, the Board members, and his
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          2  accusations were not directed at the Board members,

          3  but primarily at the staff and the Police

          4  Department.

          5                 MR. KUNTZ: No, I think that's right.

          6  And I think that's certainly what he stated in his

          7  written materials that the Board had seen.

          8                 I think it's important, when

          9  Commissioner Greinsky talks about the damage that

         10  was done by the Barkan regime in excluding

         11  commissioners in general and Council people in

         12  particular, all of these EEOC complaints, we didn't

         13  have a single EEOC complaint, I confirmed this with

         14  the staff, filed before the end of 1997. This Board,

         15  internal, going back to 1987, that's extraordinary.

         16  That's extraordinary, whether it was internal in the

         17  Police Department in the '93 period, with all the

         18  problems we had, it directly flowed from excluding

         19  the leavening impact of the Council members being

         20  present, and in particular Commissioner Greinsky,

         21  who really brings a wealth of experience and

         22  confirmation and affirmation of the mission. And

         23  what I trust Commissioner deLEON, I'm sure he'll

         24  join us, will see, is that having the commissioners

         25  involved will make a tremendous difference to the
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          2  staff.

          3                 Having that personnel committee in

          4  place will make sure that not only will there be

          5  community meetings and outreach, but people will

          6  know that there was an opportunity for them to come

          7  and work at the CCRB to see it and to make it more

          8  transparent. And there was a deliberate effort on

          9  the part of the late Barkan regime to shut that door

         10  and to make it opaque not only to the public but to

         11  the Council designees, and as you may have gathered,

         12  Commissioner Greinsky and I didn't like it, we

         13  fought it, and we said the day will come when Barkan

         14  will be gone and we'll still be here and we will be

         15  doing the City's work and the public's work, and I

         16  think by making it more transparent, as Mr. DeLEON

         17  has said, you will absolutely lessen those concerns.

         18                 We do a lot of outreach now as a

         19  staff. The staff goes out a lot, you should get

         20  mailings in your Councilmanic district about our

         21  activities. But it's not simply quantity it's also

         22  quality, and when I hear from Mr. DeLEON that word

         23  isn't getting out there, he's telling us the truth.

         24  He has no reason not to tell us the truth about

         25  that, so we have to do a better job in getting it
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          2  out there and personnel committees and hiring is an

          3  integral part of doing that, because if the staff

          4  feels they only have to satisfy the dictates of a

          5  chair, and they don't have to satisfy Greinsky and

          6  Kuntz and deLEON, sooner or later that will

          7  translate, but if they know that Commissioner deLEON

          8  feels there has not been appropriate outreach to the

          9  City, particularly the Latino community, or if I

         10  feel there hasn't been appropriate outreach to the

         11  African-American community, or Mr. Greinsky feels

         12  there hasn't been particular outreach in any

         13  community, they've got to pay attention because

         14  we're not having it, and that makes a difference.

         15  And, so, if you call us back periodically, I sort of

         16  glossed over that, but you call us back, not just

         17  the Chair, but all of us back and say how is it

         18  going, Commissioner deLEON will tell you how it's

         19  going, and you can be assured that his calls will be

         20  taken and the staff will be more responsive.

         21                 And that's particularly what we want

         22  and hopefully you will urge the chair, and you've

         23  got the power over the purse strings to do it, to

         24  pay attention.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 Good morning, Mr. DeLEON.

          6                 I think that you've raised a very,

          7  very important issue and I'd like to suggest that

          8  with such a large immigrant, non-English-speaking

          9  population in New York City, their particularly

         10  community, including the Latino community, that have

         11  felt isolated and are unclear about how to address

         12  police misconduct, in my district I would point to

         13  two particular communities.

         14                 I have a Bangladeshi, Pakistani

         15  community, I also have a very large Haitian

         16  community, both of whom have had some very

         17  questionable relationships with police over the

         18  years. And, so, I hope that's something that all of

         19  you as commissioners will take a look at these

         20  various ethnic enclaves throughout the City and

         21  their feeling of isolation and historic isolation,

         22  because you're also dealing with folks who are

         23  coming from nations where perhaps even their

         24  interactions in the nations that they came from will

         25  reflect how they interact with police here and their
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          2  avenues of redress for their concerns and their

          3  various perspectives.

          4                 You're coming to the Board as a new

          5  member, and I've always, it's like the first day of

          6  school, we're always very excited and optimistic

          7  and, you know, I'd like to get a sense from you,

          8  what vision, what new perspective you would bring to

          9  the CCRB, and if there are any changes that you can

         10  identify outside of some that we've already

         11  discussed, what would those be?

         12                 MR. DeLEON: Well, I mean, as an

         13  outsider there's a lot I don't know, but based on my

         14  conversations with former commissioners, two former

         15  commissioners, I would be very interested in asking

         16  questions in a few areas.

         17                 One former commissioner said to me

         18  that the members of the CCRB were given tons of

         19  files to go through but had no opportunity to

         20  interact seriously on police policy issues. So, that

         21  would be one thing I would be seriously concerned

         22  about, whether or not that was true. And I'm going

         23  to be looking to see what extent does the CCRB get

         24  involved in policy issues, because ultimately you

         25  can have 50 complaints and you can solve it by an
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          2  additional guideline in the patrolman's manual.

          3                 Secondly, I'd be very interested to

          4  see on the bias issue whether I detect any, whether

          5  there has been a thorough job done, you know,

          6  gathering witnesses, et cetera, in investigation of

          7  an incident.

          8                 I think the CCRB's credibility only

          9  is good as its competency, and I think that we have

         10  to be seen -- ultimately people are going to see you

         11  as pro-police, or anti-police, but ultimately all we

         12  have to fall back on is the quality of the

         13  investigations. And I would like to see the quality

         14  of the work done by the staff.

         15                 And, third, I'm generally aware of

         16  the allegations made by Mr. Aquino -- is that his

         17  name? And I'm anxious to see what the outcomes of

         18  some of those allegations are.

         19                 As former chair of the New York City

         20  Human Rights Commission, I'm very aware of equal

         21  employment issues, and I think that there are

         22  standard things one can do and I'd be curious to see

         23  if they're being done.

         24                 By the way, you know, the City has

         25  more than enclaves of immigrants, one in three I
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          2  think it is, that's a pretty big enclave, is

          3  immigrant right now. So, we have a lot of work to do

          4  on immigrants.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          7  Quinn has a question?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          9  Sorry, I was down at the living wage conference, so

         10  I missed most of Dennis', not testimony, but

         11  whatever, questions and answers. I just wanted to

         12  say to my colleagues, Dennis, the name as you know

         13  being put forth by the Manhattan Delegation, he was

         14  actually my suggestion to the Manhattan Delegation,

         15  and if you were going to sit down in a vacuum and

         16  say let's make a perfect resume for somebody to be

         17  on the Civilian Complaint Review Board, I think it

         18  would be pretty darn close to the one that Dennis

         19  puts forward before us today. So, I hope that he'll

         20  be approved by the full Council, and I think he will

         21  be a great resource to us as a body and to the City.

         22                 MR. DeLEON: Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, at this

         24  point I think we've asked all the questions. I was

         25  about to say the same thing, looking at your resume
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          2  and background, but Council Member Quinn has said it

          3  all pretty much eloquently for the ending at this

          4  point.

          5                 I'd like to take the vote on these

          6  three candidates. We'll have to hold the vote open

          7  of course because of some members that are not here,

          8  but I can clearly -- oh, we don't have anybody here

          9  to take the vote? In that case, we'll hold it open

         10  til the end, but I am sure that the Committee will

         11  approve you. Congratulations to the three of you for

         12  your desire to continue to serve the City,

         13  Commissioner Greinsky and Commissioner Kuntz, and

         14  soon-to-be Commissioner deLEON, I'm glad that you're

         15  continuing your extensive service to this City, and

         16  we hope that we can be helpful to you, as soon as

         17  you identify whatever those shortcomings are that

         18  may continue to keep the agency from being all that

         19  it could be.

         20                 We need CCRB to be strong and

         21  independent and to support the community and the

         22  police, because the police are protecting our

         23  community.

         24                 I know I have lived in a

         25  single-family home-owner community primarily and
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          2  they want police protection and they also want their

          3  rights and their young people protected also, and

          4  it's a delicate balance for the police. It's one

          5  that they struggle with every day. We need to help

          6  them as much as possible to do a job without having

          7  to cross the line into abuse and into unnecessary

          8  intimidation.

          9                 So, I want to commend the three of

         10  you again and thank you very much for coming by this

         11  morning, and congratulations in advance.

         12                 MR. KUNTZ: Thank you very much, and

         13  members of the Committee. Thank you.

         14                 MR. GREINSKY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, at this

         16  time we'd like to go to the Voter Assistance

         17  Commission, and we'd like to swear in -- let me find

         18  my statement. Okay, at this time I would like to go

         19  to the Voter Assistance Commission. Today we have

         20  with us Ms. Jane Kalmus and Mr. Glenn Magpantay.

         21                 The Voter Assistance Commission is

         22  charged with the duty of advising all appropriate

         23  officials on matters concerning voter registration

         24  and participation. In addition to seven ex-officio

         25  members, there are nine members, three appointed by

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  the Mayor and six by the Council. The Commission

          3  appoints a coordinator of voter assistance, and

          4  together they monitor voter turnout and

          5  registration, coordinate efforts to both City

          6  agencies and private sector and increasing voter

          7  registration and voting. City agencies are required

          8  to cooperate fully with the Commission's efforts to

          9  increase voter registration and turnout.

         10                 Local Law 29 of 2000 requires that

         11  many City agencies distribute voter registration

         12  forms to the public during the course of their

         13  normal business operation, and where requested, help

         14  is given in completing such forms.

         15                 The Commission is required to develop

         16  guidelines for compliance with this law.

         17                 At this time we'd like to swear in

         18  Ms. Kalmus. Could you raise your right hand, please?

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         20  or affirm the testimony you're about to give us is

         21  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         22  truth?

         23                 MS. KALMUS: I do.

         24                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

         25  for the record.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            59

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 MS. KALMUS: My name is Jane Kalmus,

          3  and I reside at 410 East 57th Street in New York

          4  City.

          5                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

          7  opening statement, Ms. Kalmus?

          8                 MS. KALMUS: No, I don't, Mr.

          9  Chairman. But I look forward to answering any

         10  questions that the Committee would put to me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, Council

         12  Member Provenzano has a question, so we'll start

         13  with her.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It's nice

         15  to see you again.

         16                 MS. KALMUS: It's nice to see you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I think we

         18  last met, you came before Government Ops, I believe.

         19                 MS. KALMUS: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, you

         21  have been on the Commission I guess 12 years?

         22                 MS. KALMUS: Since its inception in

         23  1989.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         25  Well, you certainly are to be commended for your
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          2  commitment and your intuitiveness, despite no budget

          3  and not much of -- well, not much of anything

          4  happening, I guess, ups and downs.

          5                 MS. KALMUS: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You may

          7  recall at our last meeting I had suggested, and I

          8  still believe, truthfully, that it should be the

          9  duty of the Board of Elections to do the things that

         10  the Voter Assistance Unit, Commission, is supposed

         11  to be doing.

         12                 I also, and nobody tell Speaker

         13  Miller, but am not a proponent of the City's

         14  legislation that authorizes the City agencies to be

         15  handling voter registration forms, with maybe the

         16  exception of the City Clerk's Office.

         17                 I mean, I can't see someone going

         18  into the Children's Administrative Services all in a

         19  dither about a foster child or adopting or doing

         20  whatever, and someone is going to say to them,

         21  excuse me, would you like to sit down and fill out a

         22  voter registration form. So, I have a problem with

         23  that.

         24                 I would like, I guess, to ask you to

         25  expand on some of the ideas you might have. Do you
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          2  get paid, or are you a volunteer?

          3                 MS. KALMUS: No, it is an unsalaried

          4  position.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:

          6  Unsalaried. Unpaid volunteer.

          7                 MS. KALMUS: Unpaid volunteer.

          8                 Our commitment is to the process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And it's

         10  truly a commitment.

         11                 MS. KALMUS: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I would

         13  think that there would be a lot of other volunteers

         14  out there, but I guess there are not, that would be

         15  committed to this kind of thing, particularly since

         16  the last presidential fiasco election that we had,

         17  and, you know, some of the things that are going on

         18  with elections all around the country.

         19                 Because I see your role specifically

         20  to register voters and to instruct voters on their

         21  rights and responsibilities, but if you could expand

         22  on that or maybe see a way that this Commission, you

         23  know, is there a light at the end of the tunnel? I

         24  don't know.

         25                 MS. KALMUS: May I take your questions
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          2  one at a time?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Please.

          4                 MS. KALMUS: And the first is that I

          5  think that it is key to the Voter Assistance

          6  Commission that we retain our independence from the

          7  Board of Elections, because the Board of Elections

          8  is a bipartisan organization, whose primary

          9  responsibility is the act of voting and the fair

         10  representation of party candidates, while VAC's

         11  focus is on the registration of voters and the

         12  instruction on voters' rights, regardless of parting

         13  responsibility.

         14                 We have a structure, Madam

         15  Councilwoman, that could very well lead to a sense

         16  of responsibility for a newly registered voter who

         17  would be able to turn to the Voter Assistance

         18  Commission with any questions that they might have

         19  about the process of voting.

         20                 Before that, it is essential that the

         21  person who wishes to register is given an

         22  opportunity at every turn to do so, and the Local

         23  Law 29 stipulates that it is important for the

         24  agency's outline in the voter Local Law 29, which

         25  was arranged primarily because New York State has
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          2  the Motor Voter law, but in New York City, as you

          3  know there are fewer owners of vehicles than there

          4  are throughout the rest of the state, and in an

          5  effort --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That's

          7  hard to imagine but I do know it's true.

          8                 MS. KALMUS: But it is true. Our

          9  population is different.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         11                 MS. KALMUS: The ownership of vehicles

         12  is different, and it was that in mind when Council

         13  Member Gifford Miller and Mark Green put together

         14  the Local Law 29 to take into account and to make it

         15  easier for the people seeking assistance to be given

         16  the opportunity to take with them a voter

         17  registration form.

         18                 Now, this is a very important

         19  component of the work that the voter assistance

         20  does, and we're hopeful that this coming season, in

         21  2002, we will be able to make it attractive to the

         22  City agencies to offer the voter registration form

         23  with the guidelines that the Voter Assistance

         24  Commission was able to prepare on behalf of the

         25  citizens of the City.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3  But with all due respect, I think if this Commission

          4  is going to stay in existence, there has to be many,

          5  many other ways of getting out there to reach

          6  people.

          7                 I think that the Commission has to be

          8  much more proactive. I think we have to reach our

          9  kids senior year of high school, we have to reach

         10  college students, maybe go to businesses, because it

         11  has not worked asking the agencies to do this, and I

         12  don't think it's something that is going to work,

         13  despite the fact that there is legislation out

         14  there.

         15                 Again, I mean, you know, when they're

         16  doing the business of their business, I just can't

         17  envision them being involved in voter registration,

         18  so I would hope that there are other avenues that

         19  would be explored.

         20                 MS. KALMUS: There are and there can

         21  be, and it is only because we have been underfunded

         22  and undermined. These are words that you have heard

         23  me say over the years. It has not changed with this

         24  new administration, which is a deep disappointment

         25  to me. They have been unhelpful to the Commission.
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          2  We have been undermined in a series of manners that

          3  really would be scandalous. And I know what we can

          4  do, I know what we did for the first two years when

          5  we had a staff of nine and a budget that had been

          6  put into place, and we were off and running. We had

          7  an annual report which was distributed to all

          8  elected officials throughout the City, to the

          9  Governor as well, and we had a future that was going

         10  to be helpful to the City's electorate.

         11                 To the unregistered, there was an

         12  opportunity to make their voices heard. We do this

         13  as the Voter Assistance Commission. We would appear

         14  before community boards, we had a fine series of

         15  booklets which had been written and printed and

         16  because of a series of political in-fighting, we

         17  lost our Chairman, we lost our coordinator, and

         18  until 1995 we limped along with very little in the

         19  way of finances.

         20                 There was a time when we did have a

         21  very good coordinator, and the now Deputy Mayor

         22  Dennis Walcott was our Chairman. We came to life, it

         23  was an excellent opportunity. We made some great

         24  inroads, but then, for whatever the reasons, I'm

         25  still not satisfied that the Chairman that we now
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          2  have who is a mayoral appointment, has been

          3  unhelpful. The Council representatives have been

          4  almost -- we've been out of the loop, we have no

          5  budget, as you know, and it's very sad for me to

          6  have to sit here and discuss this with you again

          7  when there is a world out there, when New York City

          8  should be leading the fighting in getting the

          9  under-represented registered. It can be done, it

         10  should be done, and it will be the voice of the

         11  Voter Assistance Commission to do this, to continue

         12  to do this.

         13                 We could use our web site which is

         14  limp and uninteresting. There are ways of marking

         15  the public service campaigns on cable, on

         16  television. We've done this in the past. The plea is

         17  a simple one; are you registered? I am. If you are

         18  registered, you can vote, and it really doesn't make

         19  any difference what party you're enrolled in. That's

         20  the message of the Voter Assistance Commission.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: What does

         22  the Commission consist of now? How many people to

         23  run?

         24                 MS. KALMUS: We have three appointed

         25  by the Mayor. We have a Council appointment from
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          2  each of the five boroughs, and we have an at large

          3  commissioner.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Ten, six

          5  -- nine?

          6                 MS. KALMUS: Nine.

          7                 Then we have the ex-officios, which

          8  is what complicates it. The ex-officios are

          9  representatives of the Deputy Mayor Harold Robles

         10  Ramon; representative of Danny DeFrancesco of the

         11  Board of Elections, a representative of the Public

         12  Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum's representative; the

         13  representative of Michael Cardozo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Corp

         15  Counsel.

         16                 MS. KALMUS: The Corp Counsel.

         17                 Mark Page of the OMB. The new

         18  Department of Education would be Joel Klein, and the

         19  representative of Joseph O'Hare, who, incidentally,

         20  was our first Chairman, who was now chairman of the

         21  Campaign, has been chairman of the Campaign Finance

         22  Board.

         23                 As you can see, the weight of the

         24  ex-officios, who each has a vote, there is very

         25  little that the Council --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Who set up

          3  the Commission that way?

          4                 MS. KALMUS: It was a Charter

          5  Commission set up by Frederick Schwarz, and Eric

          6  Lane in 1989, and from the beginning this is what we

          7  struggled with. So, that --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I find it

          9  odd that ex-officio members have a vote.

         10                 MS. KALMUS: Yes, they do. But it's in

         11  the Charter.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, I

         13  won't take up any more of your time. Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 MS. KALMUS: Thank you, Council

         16  member.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         18  Fidler.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Ms. Kalmus, of

         20  the non-ex-officio members of the Voter Assistance

         21  Commission, how many appointments are currently

         22  full?

         23                 MS. KALMUS: The Council has been

         24  remiss in not appointing a Brooklyn Commissioner.

         25                 We have never had a Brooklyn
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          2  Commissioner. I am the representative, sorry about

          3  that --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And we've

          5  intended to fix that today, but unfortunately we'll

          6  get to that later.

          7                 MS. KALMUS: Yes, I appreciate the

          8  smile on your face, Council member.

          9                 I am the member from Manhattan hoping

         10  to be reappointed.

         11                 Eartha Thompson is Queens, Willie

         12  Bowman is the Bronx, Staten Island is a Mayoral --

         13  oh, excuse me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, without

         15  regard to who it is, Ms. Kalmus, so you're telling

         16  me that at the moment the only vacancies from the

         17  non-ex-officio members are Brooklyn and at large?

         18                 MS. KALMUS: Right.

         19                 Elizabeth Sunshine, excuse me, is the

         20  Staten Island. And Queens is Willie Bowman.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: He's the

         22  Bronx, but it's okay.

         23                 MS. KALMUS: I beg your pardon. Eartha

         24  Thompson is Queens, and Willie Bowman is the Bronx.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: In looking
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          2  over some of your answers to the pre-hearing

          3  questions, I noticed that Voter Assistance

          4  Commission materials are printed in English, Chinese

          5  and Russian. Who makes the decision -- I'm amazed

          6  that no one has bothered to print anything in

          7  Spanish in this City. I mean, I applaud the -- you

          8  know, the Chinese and Russian, it's a wonderful

          9  thing.

         10                 MS. KALMUS: We do have a Spanish

         11  brochure. These were all printed back in 1995 when

         12  we had the budget. They have been reprinted since

         13  then and that decision was made by our then

         14  full-time coordinator when we had an assistant on

         15  staff who was an excellent editor and could not only

         16  put together the annual report which is required by

         17  Charter, but also put together a series of the

         18  brochures.

         19                 Since we have not had a full-time

         20  coordinator since 1997, we have not had an

         21  opportunity to update the material or to have any

         22  new materials put together that might be of help.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: The issue, the

         24  translation or the printing costs?

         25                 MS. KALMUS: Printing costs. And the
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          2  editorial part.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

          4                 Earlier in your testimony, if I

          5  remember your words, they were somewhat blistering,

          6  that this Mayoral administration has undermined the

          7  Commission in numerous ways that would be

          8  scandalous, I think the words you used.

          9                 MS. KALMUS: That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Could you give

         11  us specific examples of that?

         12                 MS. KALMUS: I would like to give you

         13  one example, which I think will outline it for you.

         14                 The Charter calls for a full-time

         15  coordinator, and that is a position that has not

         16  been filled on a full-time basis for years. When

         17  this administration came into office in January, we

         18  were told that there would be no financing for the

         19  Voter Assistance Commission, that the next month

         20  when we met in February, we were told that the

         21  Administration had decided that there would be a

         22  part-time coordinator who is on staff in Carol

         23  Robles Ramon's office. Her name is Jamie Lavin, she

         24  is a part-time coordinator, as well as staffing

         25  whatever other business Carol Robles Ramon has for
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          2  her to do.

          3                 We have one staff member, Bebe Yusef,

          4  who has been with us for seven years, who sits alone

          5  at 100 Gold Street and does the business of the

          6  Commission on a day-to-day, weekend, month-in and

          7  month-out basis. She is out now for six weeks on

          8  medical leave, having filled out the appropriate

          9  papers and all, and will not be back in time to help

         10  the Voter Assistance Commission during the upcoming

         11  election.

         12                 When I called to ask whether there

         13  would be anyone seated in our office at 100 Gold

         14  Street, from which we were moved, we used to have a

         15  three-room suite at 51 Chambers Street, the

         16  Administration took that away from us, moved us to a

         17  one-desk operation at 100 Gold Street.

         18                 When I asked if there was an

         19  opportunity to have someone take Bebe's place during

         20  the six weeks that she was going to be out on

         21  medical leave, I was told that that was not

         22  possible.

         23                 If you dial the Voter Assistance

         24  Commission, 788-8384, you get a recording from Jamie

         25  Lavin saying leave your name and number and we will
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          2  get back to you as quickly as we can.

          3                 I have tried on any number of

          4  occasions to enlist the support of this

          5  Administration in the importance of taking care of

          6  the citizens of the City, and they will not listen.

          7  This is the situation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Does anyone

          9  ever get back to anyone who leaves a message with

         10  the Voter Assistance Commission?

         11                 MS. KALMUS: I tried four times

         12  yesterday to reach her and finally got her this

         13  morning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: If an honest

         15  to goodness citizen picks up the phone, dials that

         16  number, leaves the message, does anyone get back to

         17  them while Bebe is not employed?

         18                 MS. KALMUS: I would hope so. I do not

         19  know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You don't

         21  know.

         22                 I guess the last question I have and

         23  I don't want to take too much time, I understand

         24  your objection to the Board of Elections taking over

         25  this function.
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          2                 MS. KALMUS: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I'm sure

          4  you're more than cognizant of the extraordinary

          5  budget constraints.

          6                 MS. KALMUS: No question about it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That we've had

          8  this year and we expect to face worse ones next

          9  year. Would your objection be similar if the Voters

         10  Assistance Commission were operated by the Campaign

         11  Finance Board, which tends to have a non-partisan

         12  and different mandate?

         13                 MS. KALMUS: That's a very interesting

         14  question. I would do anything in this world to work

         15  with Joseph O'Hare and Nicole Gordon. The answer to

         16  that question would have to be, yes, I would be

         17  simply delighted to entertain the notion that the

         18  Voter Assistance Commission would have an identity

         19  in the City of New York which needs it more than

         20  anywhere else, and would consider that something

         21  that could be explored to the benefit of both,

         22  because we would bring assistance to the voters, not

         23  the candidates, it's a very interesting question,

         24  Councilman. We would be offering the assistance to

         25  the voters while they offer the assistance to the
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          2  candidates, and between us, I think with the kind of

          3  media campaign, with the kind of attention that

          4  would be paid to the voter and the candidate, it

          5  would be a happy marriage.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          7  Clarke.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 Ms. Kalmus, good afternoon.

         11                 MS. KALMUS: Good afternoon to you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I find the

         13  struggle that's happening in the Commission to be

         14  quite troubling. You know, I have to say that often

         15  times we're dealt lemons in life and I think

         16  particularly where voter registration is concerned

         17  in the City of New York, you know, it's definitely

         18  derelict of us not to make sure that the Commission

         19  has the resource required, but I'm just wondering if

         20  there's a way that the Commissioners appointed by

         21  the Council can make lemonade out of this situation.

         22  And if you have any suggestions, because I don't

         23  think that the financial paralysis that you guys are

         24  experiencing should stop the show, and it's very

         25  apparent to me that you've been dealt the curve ball
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          2  here, but I think it's important that team, you

          3  know, voter registration really come up with some

          4  strategies to address this.

          5                 We have such a huge population of

          6  potential voters out there that don't even know that

          7  you exist. You know, I'd like to get some of your

          8  thoughts on what could be done given the limited

          9  resources, given the challenge you're facing with

         10  the Administration to (1) advocate for yourselves,

         11  but (2) advocate for the voters that are out there,

         12  and if there have been any discussions among the

         13  commissioners as to what actions that you can

         14  actually take and indeed utilizing the Council as a

         15  resource.

         16                 MS. KALMUS: I would like very much to

         17  answer that in the following fashion: We have six

         18  council members, the Brooklyn Commissioner. The

         19  Brooklyn Commissioner hopefully will be filled, and

         20  what I would like to see with the new complement of

         21  the six council members that would make up the Voter

         22  Assistance Commission, that the representative from

         23  each borough, I would be from Manhattan, would work

         24  closely with the Manhattan Borough President, the

         25  Council Borough Board, make appearances before them
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          2  on a regular basis, to have the at large Council

          3  appointee to the Commission accompany each of the

          4  Council members to appear before them and to make

          5  sure that the needs of the various boroughs are

          6  taken care of in a dialogue between the members as

          7  often as is deemed necessary and appropriate.

          8                 To be vigorous about this. We do not

          9  have a committee structure on the Voter Assistance

         10  Commission now because we have a Chairman who is

         11  less than interested in the future of the Voter

         12  Assistance Commission, nowhere is it written that

         13  the Chairman is voted on, is appointed by the Mayor.

         14  Nowhere. It's always been that the Mayor's

         15  appointment has become the Chair. There is nothing

         16  in the Charter that says that we can't reconfigure

         17  the Voter Assistance Commission. I would like to see

         18  us appear before the various Council committees,

         19  other than the government operations, before whom

         20  we've appeared over the years, and to make the

         21  dialogue ever so much more interesting, and to

         22  continue to work with the good government groups who

         23  have helped us maintain a level of competence,

         24  that's the New York Public Interest Group, Common

         25  Cause, Citizens Union, Community Service Society has
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          2  been a great ally of ours, and indeed, as your

          3  Chairman knows, has come up with a resolution which

          4  died in the committee in the Voter Assistance

          5  Commission because the Chairman didn't want to be

          6  part of a resolution where we would be asking for

          7  additional budget money to see that the work is

          8  carried forward.

          9                 Those are some of the things that I

         10  would like to offer to you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. Do you

         12  have any ideas on how the web site can be maximized

         13  on?

         14                 MS. KALMUS: Absolutely. We have the

         15  right to an editor who would update it. We have such

         16  an opportunity between now and November, Election

         17  Day, we should be offering answers to the most often

         18  asked questions of people can tune into the web site

         19  and really have an education in answering the

         20  questions that are most often asked. And I think

         21  that all that would take would be someone who is

         22  able to put together an attractive website, and

         23  download the voter registration form, that according

         24  to the Board of Elections, can be done, it would

         25  save a lot of money in printing, and for someone who
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          2  is conversant with how a website can be

          3  user-friendly, I think this could be one of the most

          4  exciting things that we could do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          6                 We're running out of time.

          7                 MS. KALMUS: Yes, I'm sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But you've

          9  clearly demonstrated a mastery of the issues and

         10  you've shown your commitment to be far and above

         11  that of a normal citizen of the City and I want to

         12  applaud you for your perseverance in an agency that

         13  seems to be in turmoil.

         14                 So, in that regard, Mr. Glenn

         15  Magpantay.

         16                 MR. MAGPANTAY: Magpantay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Magpantay, I'll

         18  get it. Sorry, forgive me.

         19                 Can you raise your right hand. Do you

         20  still want to be sworn in?

         21                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         22  or affirm the testimony you're about to give is the

         23  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. MAGPANTAY: I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Please state your
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          2  name for the record.

          3                 MR. MAGPANTAY: Glenn Duque Magpantay.

          4                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

          6  opening statement?

          7                 MR. MAGPANTAY: I do not, Mr. Chair.

          8  But this discussion is problematic and is actually

          9  disconcerting.

         10                 I mean, I looked at the numbers

         11  before coming here, and we know that there are over

         12  1,700,000 New Yorkers who are eligible but not

         13  registered to vote. Thirty-two percent of the

         14  eligible citizenship population, citizen voting age

         15  population of New York City do not have their voices

         16  heard in these elections.

         17                 My practice area, I'm an attorney. My

         18  practice area is in defending and promoting the

         19  civic and political participation in a non-partisan

         20  manner of minority voters, particularly

         21  Asian-Americans but not limited to just

         22  Asian-Americans, and when you have numbers like

         23  that, and you have New York City, the only City in

         24  the union that I know of which has charged and

         25  developed a Voter Assistance Commission like this,
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          2  that New York does have the ability to move forward

          3  political participation amongst, but yet you have

          4  this dialogue. The question is are we a leader in

          5  this effort, or are we something like Florida? And

          6  we could talk about sonesia (phonetic) on Sunday,

          7  you all know this, too, what happened with the

          8  election. I know very well the problems at the Board

          9  of Elections. I work with the Board of Elections and

         10  we hold the Board of Elections accountable over

         11  making sure that people in this City can execute an

         12  operative and a private, and a fully counted vote.

         13  But those questions we were asking in Florida two

         14  years ago, and we were asking in Florida two weeks,

         15  will we ask those questions again in New York City?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Well,

         17  clearly you have a vision of what the agency should

         18  be and what your role can be, and I would offer at

         19  this point, and in the interest of time, since

         20  clearly you have some demonstrated ability in this

         21  area that I hope that you could be a valuable

         22  addition.

         23                 I just want to point out for the

         24  record, before Councilman Fidler asked his question,

         25  we know that you were recommended by the Brooklyn
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          2  Delegation, although you've gotten wise and you're

          3  going to move to the best borough in the City I

          4  hear, which is Queens. I'm just having fun. I'm just

          5  having fun. Brooklyn is a wonderful borough, but

          6  Queens is much better, right, Tony?

          7                 But we have talked as a Council and

          8  we're going to, because of your background and

          9  expertise and desire to serve, going to make you the

         10  Citywide recommendation as opposed to the Brooklyn

         11  Borough Delegation, and we feel that because as you

         12  just demonstrated, we do need to make sure that the

         13  Voter Assistance Commission has the ability to

         14  observe its original mandate.

         15                 Councilman Fidler.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes. There are

         17  at least two and a half Brooklyn members here today,

         18  but Councilman Avella informs me his wife is from

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 Just, you know, Brooklyn was called

         21  out to not having a member of this Commission. I do

         22  want to indicate for the record that earlier in the

         23  year we were informed we had the vacancy and we put

         24  Mr. Magpantay's name forward, and other than his

         25  questionable judgment in moving out of the best
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          2  Borough in the City, we're still very happy with

          3  that recommendation. But he is going to fill the at

          4  large seat, and I promise you, Mr. Chairman,

          5  Brooklyn will be back to the Rules Committee with a

          6  recommendation forthwith, now that we are once again

          7  aware that there is no Brooklyn member on the Voters

          8  Assistance Commission.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I realize you

         10  were going to fill your obligation with an excellent

         11  candidate, and he will be the Citywide candidate and

         12  we hope that you can find a way to get back to us

         13  with any ideas and suggestions you may have.

         14                 At this point, thank you very much

         15  for your desire to serve the City in this role.

         16                 At this point we need to go, and I

         17  don't know how you got to be last, Mrs. Bloom, but

         18  things just -- they claim they had to leave early,

         19  so I apologize for you being here all morning, but

         20  we're going to go to your appointment and just for

         21  the record, the Health and Hospitals Corporation is

         22  a public benefit corporation charged with the duty

         23  of providing high quality, dignified and

         24  comprehensive health care and treatment to the

         25  public, especially to those who cannot afford such
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          2  services.

          3                 HHC's Board of Directors consist of

          4  16 members who administer HHC, included within the

          5  Board membership are ten appointees of the Mayor,

          6  five of whom are recommended by the Council for

          7  consideration by the Mayor. The term of office for

          8  directors is five years with the vacancy filled

          9  under the terms of the original appointment.

         10                 Directors are not compensated but are

         11  reimbursed for actual expenses.

         12                 Mrs. Bloom is a reappointment. Could

         13  you raise your right hand to be sworn in, please?

         14                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         15  or affirm the testimony you're about to give us is

         16  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         17  truth?

         18                 MS. BLOOM: I do.

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

         20  and affiliation for the record.

         21                 MS. BLOOM: My name is Ruth Bloom,

         22  B-l-o-o-m.

         23                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         25  opening statement, Mrs. Bloom?
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          2                 MS. BLOOM: My only statement is don't

          3  be apologetic that I've been here, I've enjoyed it

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right, well,

          6  I'm glad.

          7                 MS. BLOOM: And of course, I would

          8  have comments to make about what was said, but

          9  that's not in the order of your agenda.

         10                 I don't have anything specific other

         11  than my answers to the first question.

         12                 I've enjoyed very much the 18 years

         13  that I served, and I'm very proud to serve. It's

         14  something that I've enjoyed. I have felt that it's

         15  kind of a give-back for me, as far as my being a New

         16  Yorker.

         17                 I feel very fortunate that I was born

         18  here, and born in New York and live in New York, and

         19  have the benefit of all of the educational

         20  opportunities, the three educations through my

         21  undergraduate work, and also the benefit of the

         22  cultural advantages of the City. It's a great place

         23  to live, and I'm happy to serve, because I think

         24  this is a very important agency, because of the

         25  fact, as you said, it serves primarily those who are
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          2  unable to help themselves, as far as health care is

          3  concerned. And more and more are being helped

          4  because more and more are being made aware of the

          5  fact that the opportunity is there for them. The

          6  service is there. Many people don't know. Many

          7  people don't even know where, just to digress for a

          8  moment, many people, as you may be aware, don't even

          9  know who their local City Councilperson is, who any

         10  of their elected -- you stop people on the street,

         11  they'll say I don't know. So, there's much education

         12  that has to be done, very basic education, to make

         13  people function as full citizens.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         15                 Council Member Provenzano, you have a

         16  question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         18                 I've noticed one of the things that

         19  we get when we're going over the candidates is lots

         20  of information, and I have in front of me your

         21  attendance record, which has not been exemplary over

         22  the last four or five years, would you have an

         23  explanation for that?

         24                 MS. BLOOM: Yes, I would.

         25                 My attendance has been very good
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          2  except for the past year and a half, during which

          3  time I think --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Back

          5  further than that.

          6                 MS. BLOOM: During which time I spent

          7  eight months hospitalized in five hospitals, which

          8  made it difficult for me to get to meetings.

          9                 Prior to that, I don't think that

         10  those records are correct, because in addition to

         11  attending and be part of more committees up until

         12  the last year, more committees than anyone on the

         13  board, I also attended more of the public events

         14  that took place in the respective facilities.

         15                 You want to ask me a question, sir?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: No, it's

         17  my turn. When he gets to his turn he'll ask the

         18  question.

         19                 MS. BLOOM: Oh, okay. And it may be

         20  that they just didn't record the fact that I

         21  attended a public meeting at a given hospital or

         22  that I attended a ground-breaking, et cetera, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well,

         25  that's not what I'm questioning. I mean, they do
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          2  outline every single committee, whether it be a

          3  committee on the capital budget or community

          4  relations or personnel --

          5                 MS. BLOOM: That's what I'm on --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: -- Joint

          7  commission.

          8                 MS. BLOOM: That's what I'm on now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. So,

         10  this records all of those committees.

         11                 I guess I'm asking the question, in

         12  view of the fact that, you know, the follow-up would

         13  be do you feel that you can truly serve and, you

         14  know, in view of this attendance record. I mean, if

         15  it was totally due to your hospitalization, then I

         16  would assume that now -- I mean, your personal data

         17  does indicate that you're in excellent health.

         18                 MS. BLOOM: Yes, I am in, I am in good

         19  health. And I do intend to serve and I have begun

         20  to, and I find very often that I'm at committee

         21  meetings where the other members are not there.

         22  That's why I say, except from the time from the

         23  beginning of 2001 until the beginning of this year,

         24  I was really out of commission. I was out of

         25  commission, and I was not functioning, as far as
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          2  getting to meetings, it was just not part of my life

          3  at the time. I stayed in contact with the office,

          4  because I was anxious and concerned with what was

          5  happening.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You are a

          7  Council, City Council designee on the HHC Board, and

          8  considering that, what do you view as your reporting

          9  responsibility? Do you have a relationship with City

         10  Council members?

         11                 Do you discuss things that you think

         12  might be of concern to them if they're coming up

         13  before the Board?

         14                 MS. BLOOM: I have a fairly close

         15  relationship with two members, because as you all

         16  know, the Board is primarily a new Board. I have a

         17  good relationship with David Weprin, who just came

         18  in, and with Melinda Katz.

         19                 The others I don't know as well as I

         20  will know them.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But you

         22  have served on the Board how many years?

         23                 MS. BLOOM: Eighteen years.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         25  Melinda Katz and David Weprin took office in
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          2  January. Did you have a relationship with any of the

          3  Council members prior to that when you served on the

          4  Board?

          5                 MS. BLOOM: Yes, I did. I did with

          6  Peter Vallone, with Morty Povman. If I saw the list,

          7  I could say. There were many, many with whom I did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay,

          9  thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         11  Quinn has a question. And we've been joined by

         12  Council Member Bill Perkins, Deputy Majority Leader

         13  from Manhattan, and Councilman David Weprin, your

         14  good friend, who chairs the Finance Committee, from

         15  Queens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. One

         17  of my questions is kind of a follow-up to a little

         18  bit of the question that Council Member Provenzano

         19  asked as it relates to coordination, and you know

         20  interest in coordinating with the Council on issues.

         21                 I chair the Health Committee and one

         22  of the things we want to do on the Health Committee

         23  is try to have a stronger working relationship with

         24  our five appointees to the HHC Board, because as you

         25  well know, there are things that we can't do
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          2  legislatively as a Council because of how HHC's

          3  state, et cetera, et cetera, that we could though do

          4  -- that could be accomplished through

          5  administrative actions, resolutions, et cetera, of

          6  the HHC Board.

          7                 So, one of the things we're hoping is

          8  to try to have some kind of a system where we would

          9  have regular meetings on a monthly basis with the

         10  appointees to develop, you know, once people are

         11  appointed, reappointed, to develop an agenda.

         12                 MS. BLOOM: I think that would be a

         13  very good idea.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, you would

         15  be willing to come to an additional monthly meeting?

         16                 MS. BLOOM: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great.

         18                 What's your perspective having been

         19  on the Board, and if reappointed on the present

         20  funding levels at HHC, do you think that the recent

         21  round of cuts is going to have a negative impact? I

         22  know that there were resolutions passed on this in

         23  the past by the Board, you know, opposing further

         24  cuts, I don't know what your positions were on

         25  those, or what your sense is of the fiscal crisis
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          2  and what we have to do as it relates to hospitals?

          3                 Because I'm concerned that

          4  historically during the Giuliani Administration, the

          5  Board was not aggressive enough in protecting our

          6  hospitals and didn't fight hard enough to protect

          7  the cuts -- to prevent the cuts. I don't want to

          8  protect the cuts. Prevent the cuts -- what's your

          9  perspective on that?

         10                 MS. BLOOM: Right now there is a

         11  hiring freeze from which we are in pain, because I'm

         12  sure that there are many departments that are short

         13  of staff, their hands are tied, and it's almost a

         14  case of waiting for November, and they expect to

         15  have people take early retirement --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         17                 MS. BLOOM: And then fill those slots.

         18  Because that was the answer that I recently got

         19  because I've asked that question. And I was told we

         20  have to really wait until December -- November.

         21                 I'm talking about some of the

         22  managerial positions, some of the executive jobs

         23  would have to wait, and the others are just frozen.

         24                 But in spite of that, HHC is in much

         25  better condition financially, and socially, than it
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          2  was in the past.

          3                 There was a time, for example, when

          4  we would have our annual meeting, when we would have

          5  to have the police, because there was so much

          6  antagonism toward the members of the Board on the

          7  part of the public, and I guess the powers that be

          8  that we were vulnerable to some kind of attack. And

          9  the newspaper was there an all the cameras and so

         10  on, we don't have that now. Now we enjoy very fine

         11  relationships. We are in the black financially. We

         12  recently floated a bond issue which floated well,

         13  and has been brought up enthusiastically. So, we

         14  don't have the debt hanging over our heads as we did

         15  before. We are not in debt. Which is a very, very

         16  big step forward for us, because for many years that

         17  was not the case.

         18                 We are also expanding. Almost all of

         19  our facilities are either being enlarged or very

         20  handsomely improved, all kinds of remodeling being

         21  done. Really making them state-of-the-art. I hate to

         22  use that expression because it's getting corny, but

         23  it really describes what happened, and walk into

         24  some of them with the lobbies, almost seeing as if

         25  they are hotels, which is not really for my benefit,
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          2  but for the benefit of the people who come there, to

          3  feel that they are in a place that is not only

          4  lovely to look at, but if it's so lovely to look at,

          5  it would be great to be there. And if they feel that

          6  it would be great to be there, that's half the

          7  battle sometimes in getting well.

          8                 I've had a personal hospital

          9  experience, as I said, during this past year, and

         10  they wouldn't all be rated as well. And also in

         11  JAYCO (phonetic) inspections, we're hitting almost

         12  the top with every one of them. We're in the

         13  nineties, and now is a question, now that we will

         14  have new inspections, it's not a question will we

         15  attain the level that we did before, but how much

         16  are we going to go over it, because of the success

         17  that we've had.

         18                 So, things are much brighter, the

         19  hospitals are so very well done, the physical

         20  plants, that I foresee a time where we will have

         21  even more people who are paying patients because of

         22  the fact that they won't feel that they're going to

         23  the poor man's hospital, they're going to be going

         24  to a luxurious place that is cared for by very

         25  devoted staff, and has all the equipment that they
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          2  need.

          3                 Hi, Melinda. Good to see you.

          4                 And once that happens, once the

          5  public realizes that our hospitals are superior in

          6  so many ways to the hospitals that they thought were

          7  the places to go and cost the insurance companies a

          8  lot of money, and them as well, then even more so

          9  will we improve because we'll have an expanded base

         10  of patronage, patronage, customer patronage, patient

         11  patronage.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         13                 Council Member Quinn, do you have

         14  anything further?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Nothing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         17  Weprin had his hand up before, and Council Member

         18  Perkins, and Council Member Fidler.

         19                 I want to remind everyone it's a

         20  quarter to one, and there are ceremonies scheduled

         21  for 1:00. And also, I want to remind the Council

         22  members that the Queens Delegation highly

         23  recommended Mrs. Bloom for this appointment.

         24                 MS. BLOOM: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I also wanted
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          2  to join in urging my colleagues to support the

          3  nomination of Ruth Bloom.

          4                 I've known Ruth Bloom for probably

          5  about 20 years, she's been active in the civics of

          6  Queens Council, as long as I can remember, and her

          7  reputation in the community and in the civic

          8  community, in the Jewish community is outstanding. I

          9  know her personally, I know of her work, I know of

         10  her involvement for these very many years in the

         11  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         12                 I know there was an issue about

         13  attendance, and I understand she was ill for a

         14  period of time, but has gotten better and I look

         15  forward to having her serve.

         16                 I have consulted her prior to being a

         17  public official on issues relating to the Health and

         18  Hospitals Corporation on many occasions and she was

         19  very knowledgeable and informative, and very helpful

         20  to me, in providing that information, and I urge my

         21  colleagues to highly support this candidacy.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         23  Perkins.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chair, and I want to welcome the
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          2  candidates.

          3                 I understand that you supported the

          4  closing of the Sidenham Clinics as well has the

          5  privatization of Coney Island?

          6                 MS. BLOOM: Not I personally.

          7  Absolutely, no.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. What

          9  was your position with regard to the closing of the

         10  hospitals and in particular the Sidenham Clinic?

         11                 MS. BLOOM: If you recall, when Mr.

         12  Giuliani took office he was the one who said he was

         13  going to see to it that the public hospitals become

         14  privatized. That was one of the things, an important

         15  part for him, of his platform.

         16                 I didn't agree. I felt that by making

         17  the facilities fewer, we won't be serving our

         18  people. There are so many people, even just the

         19  immigrant population. They are our patients. They

         20  are not going to New York Hospital or Lenox Hill,

         21  they're coming to us.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, that's

         23  good to hear. I just wanted to clear the record up.

         24  And I represent Sidenham Clinic in Harlem, so what

         25  was your position with regard to that?
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          2                 MS. BLOOM: What year was that?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That was last

          4  year. The last, two years ago. The last year of the

          5  Giuliani Administration.

          6                 MS. BLOOM: The last year?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          8                 MS. BLOOM: Yes, I voted against

          9  closing it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You voted

         11  against it?

         12                 MS. BLOOM: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         14                 MS. BLOOM: We kept it open.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, I'm

         16  glad to hear that.

         17                 MS. BLOOM: We musn't shrink our

         18  facilities, we have to expand them.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, thank

         20  you very much. I appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you,

         22  Council Member.

         23                 Council Member Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And your

         25  position on the privatization of Coney Island
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          2  Hospital the same?

          3                 MS. BLOOM: The same, absolutely. I

          4  like Coney Island Hospital.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I was going to

          6  ask you a lot of questions, but Councilwoman Katz

          7  and Councilman Weprin both spoke so highly of you

          8  and Councilman Comrie is glaring at me.

          9                 So, I just want to ask you, in the

         10  spirit of Mr. Magpantay, whether or not you'd

         11  consider moving from Queens to Brooklyn?

         12                 MS. BLOOM: No. I was born in

         13  Brooklyn, but I live in Queens most of my life.

         14  There is no public hospital, or a hospital as big as

         15  Coney Island near Coney Island.

         16                 Mr. Fidler, I say Coney Island is a

         17  very important part geographically where it is.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Coney Island

         19  Hospital is very important to a number of the

         20  Brooklyn members at least, so --

         21                 MS. BLOOM: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, I'm very,

         23  very much opposed to the privatization.

         24                 MS. BLOOM: I am very much opposed to

         25  privatization of it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          3  Katz has a question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I know that we

          5  are late, so just for one moment, if I can. I have

          6  no questions, Ruth has been a constituent of mine

          7  when I was in the Assembly and we work together a

          8  lot now in the Council, and I think she has the

          9  capacity to do a great job in HHC which has been

         10  proven by her past record, and she's also involved

         11  with Queens Chamber of Commerce and American Red

         12  Cross, and she's just been around a long time, as

         13  Councilman Weprin said, so I just wanted to add my

         14  voice and recommendations to the Queens Delegation,

         15  as the Chairman so greatly points it out.

         16                 Ruth, thank you for being here. I

         17  apologize for being late. I was at the Reform

         18  Temple. So, I thank you, and I know that your

         19  testimony was great.

         20                 MS. BLOOM: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Bloom, there

         22  were a couple of housekeeping issues that came up

         23  during the investigation of some items that need to

         24  be resolved by you or your partners.

         25                 I would hope that those are resolved
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          2  for your own benefit as quickly as possible.

          3                 MS. BLOOM: Yes, they are being

          4  resolved.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          6                 MS. BLOOM: I didn't hear about them,

          7  by the way, until a day before yesterday.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sure that

          9  Council Member Katz will make every effort to help

         10  you resolve them since they involve City agencies.

         11  So, we'll make sure that her office follows up with

         12  that.

         13                 MS. BLOOM: She'll be happy about

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         16  by Majority Leader Joel Rivera.

         17                 Council Member Perkins has one more

         18  thing. I has just been informed last night actually

         19  that the pharmacy at the Charles Drew Center in

         20  Jamaica in my district is considered for closing. I

         21  would ask that you go back to HHC and ask them not

         22  to close that. I don't think that pharmacy has a

         23  high volume of clients and people in need. I don't

         24  know if your legislative person is here to write

         25  those notes down, but I think that that would be a
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          2  terrible blow to the community. The Charles Drew

          3  Center is available by almost every bus in Jamaica.

          4  It has a high volume of constituency and to close a

          5  pharmacy when they still have the need, and still

          6  send supplies to that pharmacy for many other

          7  hospitals in the HHC system would be a terrible

          8  travesty.

          9                 MS. BLOOM: Absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: If you could just

         11  get that back to whoever it needs to be, and I will

         12  contact the head of our Queens Hospital, Mr. Martin,

         13  and convey that message to him also. But I came here

         14  first this morning knowing that I would see you, I

         15  wanted to pass it along to you as well.

         16                 Council Member Perkins had another

         17  question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, I just

         19  wanted to for the record point out that staff had

         20  brought to my attention that on the resolution

         21  regarding the closing of Coney Island Hospital there

         22  were three members opposed, Jones, Lacey Windley,

         23  and Mendez Santiago, so the candidate is not listed

         24  amongst those who oppose the closing of the

         25  hospital.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            103

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 MS. BLOOM: Was I present, sir?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And for the

          4  record, I wanted to give her an opportunity to

          5  explain whether she was present or whether she

          6  wasn't present or what was the circumstances, why

          7  she didn't join those who were opposed.

          8                 MS. BLOOM: I would have to assume

          9  that I was not there, because I can't imagine that I

         10  would have voted to close it. I'm opposed to the

         11  closing of our facilities.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, you're

         13  saying that you were absent.

         14                 MS. BLOOM: I didn't say I was. I

         15  can't remember where I was every day in the last 18

         16  years. I don't think anyone here can.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 MS. BLOOM: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you very

         21  much, Mrs. Bloom.

         22                 At this point we will close the

         23  meeting, and we will prepare to vote.

         24                 We will do the voting at once, since

         25  we're running up against the clock, and we would ask
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          2  to take the roll to vote on all of the persons that

          3  were brought before the Committee today. This would

          4  be submitting the name of William Francis Kuntz, II,

          5  to the Civilian Complaint Review Board. Submitting

          6  the name of Charles Greinsky to the Civilian

          7  Complaint Review Board. Submitting the name of

          8  Dennis Lawrence deLEON to the Civilian Complaint

          9  Review Board. Submitting the name of Ruth Bloom to

         10  HHC, Health and Hospital Corporation. Submitting the

         11  name of Glenn Duque Magpantay to the Voter

         12  Assistance Commission. And submitting the name of

         13  Jane Carolyn Kalmus to the Voter Assistance

         14  Commission.

         15                 At this point we can get a vote of

         16  aye, and we can take the roll call. I want to thank

         17  all the members for coming today, and those that

         18  stayed for the entire meeting, especially Council

         19  Member Provenzano, Fidler, and, of course, Council

         20  Member Clarke and Avella, who always try to stay for

         21  the entire meeting. I want to thank you very much.

         22                 Oh, before we do the vote, we have

         23  the new rules of the City Council, for your

         24  information. You can take this with you. Don't

         25  forget to return the red confidential booklets,
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          2  because they are confidential records on the

          3  candidates.

          4                 Thank you very much, and we'll take

          5  the vote at this time.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'd like to

         10  pass. I'll be back.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Pass.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Pass.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Mr. Chair, may

         21  I be excused to explain my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes. Yes, so

         23  ordered.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         25                 I think we had a wonderful slate of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  individuals who have been referred for the CCRB

          3  today. I'm encouraged by the addition of Dennis

          4  deLEON, and I am very encouraged by the

          5  recommendations that were made.

          6                 I'd like it to be noted that the

          7  Voter Assistance Commission is really in trouble.

          8  That no matter whom we appoint to that Board, if our

          9  concerns as members of the New York City Council are

         10  not addressed for and on behalf of the citizens of

         11  the people of New York, then appointments mean

         12  nothing.

         13                 That Commission really needs to be

         14  looked into, and given the appropriate resource and

         15  expertise, so that it resignates and is able to

         16  fulfill its mandate in the way that it was intended

         17  through the Charter of the City of New York.

         18                 And then, finally, with regard to the

         19  appointment or reappointment of Ms. Ruth Bloom to

         20  HHC, I am concerned, Mr. Chair, about Ms. Bloom's

         21  accountability in terms of the City Council.

         22                 If, in fact, Ms. Bloom is going to

         23  serve as our representative, I'd like to see that

         24  her active participation is reflective of the will

         25  of this body. I am not completely encouraged by her

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            107

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  voting record this far that that is the case.

          3                 However, given your recommendation

          4  and the recommendation of my colleagues from Queens,

          5  I'm voting aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

          8  I am also troubled by some of the testimony that Ms.

          9  Bloom gave, but I do believe that we ought to

         10  respect the recommendation of our colleagues as to

         11  appointments coming from their delegations, so I

         12  vote aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We're going to

         21  hold the vote open for the members that are not

         22  here, because the Speaker is not here, Councilman

         23  Baez is not here, so we'll hold the vote open and

         24  they can register their votes later. At this time,

         25  I'd like to remind the Committee that they can come
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          2  back and vote later today, so at this point the

          3  Committee meeting is adjourned -- recessed. Thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 (Subsequently Speaker Miller voted

          6  aye.)

          7                 (Hearing recessed at 1:20 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SHERRI MATTHEIS, a Notary Public

         10  in and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 25th day of September 2002.

         19

         20
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         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          SHERRI MATTHEIS
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, SHERRI MATTHEIS, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              SHERRI MATTHEIS
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